PLEASE POST NOTICE OF MEETING PLEASE POST

This is a meeting of the Board of Education in public for the purpose of conducting the School District’s business and is not to be considered

LUDINGTON BOARD OF EDUCATION - LUDINGTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
809 E. Tinkham Avenue, Ludington, Michigan 49431 - Phone 231-845-7303

a public community meeting. There is a time for public participation during the meeting as indicated on the agenda.

Mission: The Ludington Area Schools, in partnership with the community, will achieve excellence in a positive environment where

motivation and quality instruction ensure learning and equip students for success in society.

MEETING: Regular Meeting

DATE:
TIME:
PLACE:

L

—
-y

I
Iv.

VL

VIL
VIIL

IX.

XL

XIL
XIII.

Official minutes of the Ludington Board of Education are available for public inspection during normal business hours at the Board of Education’s
Central Business Office, 809 E. Tinkham Avenue, Ludington, Michigan. The Ludington Area School District is an equal opportunity employer and
provider. If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of special accommodations to attend or participate in a public meeting please

October 16, 2017

6:00 p.m.

Ludington High School

508 N Washington Avenue, Ludington, Michigan

CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL

O Steve Carlson OKelly Thomsen O Bret Autrey 1 Mary Jo Pung O Mike Nagle O Stephanie Reed [1Josh Snyder

SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS
A. Superintendent’s Presentation of the SAT “1500 Club”
B. 2016-2017 Financial Accounts Audit Exit Conference - Hungerford Nichols
AGENDA MODIFICATION
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION
CONSENT AGENDA
A. Ratification of Bill Payment - Per Summary Dated October 16,2017
B. Approval of Minutes September 18, 2017
BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS
A. Finance Committee Report October 12, 2017
B. Personnel Committee Report October 13,2017
C. Building & Site Committee Report October 13,2017
PRINCIPALS’ REPORTS - Dan Mesyar/Steve Forsberg
BUSINESS MANAGER’S REPORT
A. Budget to Actual Comparison and Percent to Equity - Budget Accuracy
SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT and COMMENTS
A. Superintendent’s Evaluation Professional Growth Plan Goals
B. Ludington Area Schools Oriole Foundation - Grant Awards and DWTS Update
C. Schoenherr Tennis Center Update
DISCUSSION ITEMS
A. Pupil Membership Count Day Enrollment
B. Custodial Chemicals and Supplies Bids
C. Foster Energy Efficiency Project - Lighting
D. Mason County Disc Golf Association Update
E. Strategic Plan - Focus Area: Facilities
ACTION ITEMS
A, 2016-2017 Financial Accounts Audit Approval
B. Custodial Chemicals and Supplies Bid Award
C. Recognition of October as Principal’s Month
OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS & ANNOUNCEMENTS
ADJOURNMENT

contact Superintendent Jason J. Kennedy at 231-845-7303 atleast 24 hours prior to the meeting or as soon as possible.




Memorandum - Office of the Superintendent

TO: Board of Education
FROM: Jason Kennedy, Superintendent

RE: Regular Meeting ~ Agenda Notes

Regular Meeting

SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS

1500 Club - SAT

We will honor two students, Kaleb Hatch and Trent Thompson for their outstanding performance on the
SAT college readiness assessment last spring. Each student scored at least a 1500 out of 1600 on the
assessment, placing them in the top 2% of all test takers nationally on the SAT.

Audit Exit Conference

The auditors from Hungerford and Nichols will be presenting the audit exit conference to the Board of
Education at the board meeting on October 16, 2017. The auditors will do so in a teleconference to start
the meeting at 6:00 PM and will be available to answer questions that you may have about the audit,
including a review of the financial position of the district and the fund balance numbers that are
highlighted above. We have received the highest opinion statement that an auditor provides
(unmodified opinion), along with no findings on our statement of findings.

BUSINESS MANAGER’S REPORT

Budget to Actual Comparisons and Percent to Equity

We will review budget to actual comparisons for Ludington Area Schools and the 40 schools that are
most similar to LASD for comparison purposes. We review these numbers to scrutinize our process and
ensure the best possible accuracy through the budgeting process.

SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT

Superintendent’s Evaluation Professional Growth Plan Goals

The personal growth plan developed by the superintendent, in alignment with the goal focus areas
identified by the Board president and the superintendent, will be shared with the Board of Education.
This is the same goal setting process that all administrators follow within the district. The personal
growth plan will include growth activities that will support the goal focus area, timelines for each of the
activities, and supports needed to meet the expectation outlined by the Board for the superintendent.

Ludington Area Schools Oriole Foundation - Dancing with the Stars

The Oriole Foundation was established December 2003 to enrich the Ludington Area School District’s
tradition of excellence. The Foundation’s mission is to raise public support for innovative programs and
activities sponsored by the school district, enhance and strengthen the education of all individuals and
groups within the school district, find resources to assist the development of exceptional educational
programs not normally funded through regular fiscal resources, and to fill the unique educational needs
of our community. We are hosting our second fundraising event, “Dancing with the Local Stars”, on
October 21. If you are not able to attend you will still have the opportunity to make a donation to
support your favorite couple. $1 = 1 Vote. Donations to the Oriole Foundation can be made online
through the Mason County Community Foundation website, or through our school’s webpage.

Oriole Foundation Grant Awards




Congratulations to those that applied for grants through the Oriole Foundation! This was the largest
total award ever issued by the Foundation with more than $48,000 dollars being awarded to teachers
and staff. A one time STEM donation of $25,000 was matched at last year's Dancing with the Stars event,
allowing us to provide STEM based grants during this grant cycle. An award letter with details on the
process was sent to grant award recipients.

Oriole Foundation Grant Award Recipients are as follows:
e Brenda Massie - $2499 Alternative classroom seating (3 stools per 5th grade)
Laura Holmes - $139.17 Growth mindset
Jennifer Rowe - $1313.73 Tower Garden: STEM
Ashley Sheren- $690.23 Book bags and wiggle stools
Stacey Kraft - $328.45 Coding Club for kids: STEM
Rich Kirby - $1830.00 Train heroic: TECHNOLOGY
Beth Kirby - $4550.00 Leveled Literacy Intervention
Karen Hamilton- $289.01 US Postcard Project
Karen Shineldecker - $25,000 Robotics (grades 6-12): STEM
Tracy King - $5000 Logic of English
Kristi Zimmerman- $520 - TECHNOLOGY: Buzzer equipment, $980 Foundation
Ronni Sniegowski - $126.35 Sit Spots
Mark Willis - $2000 AP Environmental Science Supplies: STEM
Anita Winterhalter - $1300.00 Lexia Reading Core 5
Melissa Ruboyianes- $1360.78 Flexible seating
Mallory Sarnowski - $400 STEM books: STEM
Jan Jackoviak- $540 Families and Franklin Full STEAM Ahead: STEM

Next Oriole Foundation grant applications are due: January 12, 2018

Schoenherr Tennis Center Update
In an effort to update the community on plans to update the Schoenherr Tennis Center, we will provide the

following update so that the plan is publicly known:

e Tennis nets have been replaced by the tennis team on Tuesday, October 10th and Wednesday,
October 11th; The new nets were purchased with proceeds from a donation received from Great

Lakes Castings, with special mention of Rob Killips, Sr. taking the lead on this initiative.

e Quotes for the resurfacing of the courts will be sought after through a competitive bidding process,
with plans to resurface the courts next spring / early summer. The Oriole Community Tennis Courts
Maintenance Fund, held within the Oriole Foundation, has a balance of $44,299.29. The entire
balance of the fund can not be spent on the project, and thus, proceeds of the sinking fund will be

used to offset the total cost of the project.

DISCUSSION ITEMS

Enrollment Update

While the numbers from Wednesday, October 4, 2017 will need to be certified by the pupil accounting
auditors yet, the preliminary number on pupil count day is outlined below. This represents an increase
of eleven (11) students over last year’s fall headcount of 2,143, and 14.1 FTE over the 2,146 students
that were budgeted for the 2017 - 2018 school year, when taking into account the partial student count
that we receive for providing services to students at LAC, less any students that have partial or
pro-rated schedules. The fall count is 90% of the school’s budget, and thus will have an approximate net
impact of increasing revenue for this school year by $96,850. The district’s foundation allowance is
$7,632 per student for this school year. Please be aware that as the numbers fluctuate during the count
period, this number may also change.

These numbers are still preliminary at this point (and have even changed for the better since being




reported to the LDN); however, are a good indication of where our enrollment stands. Section 25e
allows for money to follow transfer students between the count periods in a year, and we are still
determining whether students who were absent on count day can be included in our final numbers.

Ludington High School
Grade 9 Grade 10 Grade 11 Grade 12 Total
187 145 174 152 658

0J DeJonge Middle School

Grade 6 Grade 7 Grade 8
171 169 156 496
Foster Elementary
Grade 3 Grade 4 Grade 5
151 155 189 495

Franklin Elementary

Grade K Grade 1 Grade 2
97 99 92 288
Lakeview Elementary
Grade K Grade 1 Grade 2
72 75 70 217
Total Enrollment 2154

Custodial Chemicals and Supplies
We have provided a summary of the custodial chemical bids that we have received. We will recommend

the award of the custodial chemical contract to the local vendor, X-Cel. When accounting for the single
point delivery to each of our buildings, X-Cel was the lowest bid. A summary of the bids is outlined
below.

LUDINGTON AREA SCHOOLS
CUSTODIAL SUPPLY NUMBERS
Enviro

Yearly X-Cel Nichols Action Clean
Description Totals Pricing Pricing Pricing Pricing
TOILET PAPER 9" ply 1000', 12 per case 215 6,138.25 5,362.10 4,095.75 6,574.70
BROWN ROLL TOWEL 7.875X800', 6 per
case 322 8,001.70 6,971.30 6,874.70 9,292.92
LARGE TRASH LINERS 40-45 gal 250 x
box 134 4,33490 3,859.20 5,764.68 4,601.56
SMALL TRASH LINERS 16 Gal, 500 per
case 108 3,871.80 2,040.12 7,394.76 3,412.80

WAXED PAPER LINER (9X10X3.25) 29 551.00 466.61 582.90 651.05




'Hand Soap 1000 ML 6 per case 2 589.44 9422 12930 8324
‘Urinal Screens 12 per case 17 ’ 310.08 ﬁ323.68 ;176.97 437.24
60-gallon bags (38x58) 100 per case 23 86825  622.38 ;991.76 51658
Hair/body shampoo, case, (6 x 1000ml) 47 205014 221417 309683 251685
Supplies Only: | | - 26,215.56 21,953.78 29,107.65 28,086.94
Everything, including chemicals: 44,780.89 41,914.44 44,770.33 41,048.94
Add Labor for single-location delivery: - ;4,100.00 '4,100.00 4,100.00
(1 hour 38 weeks, w/ fica & retirement)

‘ Total:  44,780.89 46,014.44 48,870.33 45,148.94

Foster Energy Efficiency Project - Lighting

While this project does not require Board of Education approval due to the dollar amount of the project,
it is important that we communicate our desire to replace lighting at Foster Elementary School in the
gym so that it is upgraded to the same LED technology that we have begun to install throughout the
district. The total cost of the project will be approximately $5,300 and is being planned to be completed
during Christmas break.

Mason County Disc Golf Annual Update

We will discuss a recommendation from the Mason County Disc Golf Association regarding the disc golf
property and school forest. These recommendations include: 1) Clearing the scrub brush and small
trees between the practice area and the road to provide a line of sight for law enforcement officers
patrolling the area, 2) Adding a light in the parking area for increased visibility of the parking lot at
night, and 3) Potentially closing the parking area at night. In addition, the Mason County Disc Golf
Association has been developing a plan to expand and upgrade the parking lot. Also, course maps will
be posted so that law enforcement and emergency personnel are able to find someone in distress easier.

Strategic Plan - Strategic Focus Area: Facilities

While a group of school, business, and community leaders and the WSESD are working to develop a
steering committee to facilitate a study that will review 21st Century Education throughout the WSESD,
Ludington has established a strategic goal statement within its strategic plan that states that we will:
“Develop and prepare a facilities improvement plan that will evaluate the cost effectiveness of
upgrading existing facilities versus new construction.” The strategic plan lists the objective under this
strategic goal statement as being to: “Create a committee of administrators, teachers, other school
personnel and community members to develop a long-term facilities plan through consultation with a
construction management firm.” It is the recommendation of the administration that we proceed with
both of these studies in parallel to one another. This will allow for the district to participate in the
discussion that centers on 21st century education within the WSESD community, while also beginning
to develop a plan that analyzes the needs of our facilities so that the district can prioritize the use of its
sinking fund dollars, in addition to developing long range plans for the district that align with the
outcome of the 21st Century Education Think Tank.

ACTION ITEMS
2016-2017 Financial Accounts Audit Approval - We will need an action item to accept the financial
accounts audit provided by Hungerford and Nichols for the year ending June 30, 2017.




Custodial Chemicals and Supplies Bid Award - We will need an action item to approve awarding the
custodial chemicals and supplies bid to the local vendor, X-Cel, as outlined above.

Recognition of October as Principals Month - We will need an action item to approve the
proclamation in honor of October as Principals month.




RATIFICATION OF BILL PAYMENT

October 16,2017

Period: 9/12/2017

GENERAL OPERATING FUND
Payroll 9/15/17
Payroll 09/29/17

Total Payroll

Bills (09/12/17 through 10/11/17)

TOTAL GENERAL OPERATING FUND

TOTAL ATHLETIC FUND
Bills (09/12/17 through 10/11/17)

TOTAL LUNCH FUND
Bills (09/12/17 through 10/11/17)

GRAND TOTAL ALL FUNDS
Bills (09/12/17 through 10/11/17)

through 10/11/2017

543,353.22
577,929.90
1,121,283.12
890,974.24

2,012,257.36

20,859.85

43,513.21

2,076,630.42




LUDINGTON AREA SCHOOLS
BALANCE SHEET
For the Month Ending September 30, 2017

Current
Year
Assets
Savings/Checking Accounts 3 88,035
investments $ 6,792,113
Taxes Receivable $ -
Accounts Receivable $ -
Due From Other Funds $ 104,399
Capital Projects Receivable 3 -
[nventory $ -
Prepaid Expenses $ -
Other 3 -
Total Assets $ 6,984,547
Liablities and Fund Equity
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 40,040
Payroll Liabilities 3$-
Accrued Expenses $-
Due to Other Funds 3 95,860
Due to Other Governmental Units $ -
Deferred Revenue 3 -
Note Payable $-
Total Liabilities 3 135,900
Fund Equity:
Inventory (Reserved) $-
Other Fund Balance 3 6,848,647
Total Fund Balance $ 6,848,647
Total Liabilities and Fund Equity $ 6,984,547

Prepared by the Business Office




%S9°€l

%000

%168

%1L8Ye
%0.L°0C
%6191
%c¥ 0T
%0L'6¢2
%clee
%lc0e
%18'Gl
%l Ll
%00°0

%v9L1
%006

%Vl Ly

%000
%00°0
%00°0
%NN"N

%Ll

%000

%6¥ "L

%8L°2¢2
%60°91
%90°LL
%1902
%¥5'82
%G5°ce
%90°¢C
%9891
%9¥LL
%000

%61°Cl
%947 L1

%61 0¥

%000
%00°0
%000
9NN’ n

GEL'Z0L' L)

8L¥'60l
GEE'SSY
061162
¥/2'689
zi6'lee’t
L06'LEE
9i6'syl’L
€62'S6C
ye6'L8Y
£16'20.
oLL'e6Le
€/2'80L'6

8Z8'vreTL
00€'9.S

05789
.BC'9Z6'E

80110 SssuIsng a8y} Aq pasedaid

[ R e A T A T e R e R e A e e e &#r

&>

& & &

L¥9'8¥8'9
019'809°L

Le0'0ve's
019'950°¢
858'8
226'691
viL'8y
vLLMWL
61L'S¥¢E
log'eel
868°25¢
015'88

€/6'86
0€0'L6

€8.'/8¢
80¥'061°L

L¥9'962'8

&

A H HH

6¥2'99.'9 $

80.'925°1t ¢

S¥2'862°02 $

$
9/z'8lL  $
167629 $
yog'eec
8yo'legs  §
1€9°229'L  $
gor'vor ¢
viy'eer'l $
gog'ese  $
206'985  $
goo'veL  $

- $
€68'08l'c ¢
189'862°0} $

G¥'1y9'0T §

00€'9.8

00S'¥89
662'926°C

&

aouejeg pun4d buipug

£1/0¢€/9 9eleg pund
psjewnsy

sosuadxy Jano
ONUBASY JO SS99X
sainjpuadxy |elo |

siajsuel]/
S80IAIDS WWOD/
sos|Uly/
S90INBS [eljua))/
uoneyodsuel] /
ey g 1edoy
ssauisng/
UllWpy [00Yog/
‘Ulpy “usg/
|euononJsuy/
jdnd/eoiniag poddng
payissepun /
SPSSN PappY/
olseg/uoionsu|
*STHNLIANIdXH

anusAey |10l

slajsuei |
er
f,/x?.,; i

aleIbaulLIBIul



%¢€.L'88
%e.'88
%00°0

%89°19
%0070
%000
%ee Pl

%L GV
% 11 &

%1228
%lces
%000

%EL 98
%000
%00°0
%0%°G
%€8°99

82140 SseuIsng ay) Aq patedeid

06%'5S
06¥'GS

62¥'vol

CLy

S6'€0L
aoueies

¥F H B

& A H

€65'08 $
rL9'Le $

015'952
015952

&> & &

¥G¥'602

12

12¥'602
21D 01 JedA

A N R

y0ov'/L2

ooo‘zle
goo‘zie

€88'€lE

00§

£ge'ele
196pnga

$

$
$

€ A & T

gouejeg pun4 Buipug

£1/0g/9 92Eled pund

asuadxg [e1oL
Bunjuig uoponsuoD
juswdinbg
'SIUNLIANIJXHE

anuanay [Bjo]
BUY0
spuog Jo ajeg
pun4 Bupjuig 1se” 1
Bupjuig snusasy
1QIANNEATNM



%Ge'€eT
%8E Y
%0¥°G5¢
%S0 L1
%000

%¥0'8S
%000
%000
O%tN G

%6 e
%00°0
%000
%0%°8
%00°0

%vy il
%00°0
%000
%N0" N

8ol SsauIsng oy} Agq patedaid

ese'oze’e ¢
L2h'80v'E
%S e £9'88
- % -
%6°SY €LL'2L
%902 L9v'9l
%0°0 -
%L1 2Ls
- ﬂ -
— ™ $ -
YL L 7JG

$

& F B

r & & &

soueleg pund Buipug

go9z'col's ¢ £1/0€/9 |deleg pund
000°262 asuadxg |ejo ]
005’2l uoIONISUOD
005'¥91 juswdinbg
000°08 Buiuueld

- spuog sjsos Buiso|n

'STUNLIANIdXT

000'S $ anuansy (810 |

- $ siaje

- $ spuog Jo .
nna'‘c & 1saJe1ul



S90'v9LL9 0vZ'6v6'61 LZ6'0vS'Sh 866'0€ELY 078'L69°SE 870°196°0€ 6CL'BLL'ET 06Z'0£58L LTL'EELEL 6.1'19t8 6V'8TL'E 0L0'€20°L
9£9'SLS0T 600'LS99L YSO'vLL'SL 0LL'L08EL 95€'9v0'L 660°0vS‘0L 688'8S6'L 06£'9LL9 pLTY8Y'Y 097'906'C £€S6'LTYL 9/8'TLE
ZL6'620°0C SS'LOT9L 9/5'€68'PL 6€L'S6E'EL LL6'VLLLL 89L'LSL0L YSE'€69'L 6¥1'690°9 SS9'€S0'Y 9€7'98.°C 6LE09C'L 6SS'TL9
LLY'8SS0C LL9'960°LL L6T'ELY'S) 680'VEL'VL €55°9/8LL 19£'€97°01 0649718 LSL'V8T'9 858565V €8689L°C 0TT'9v0°L SL8L6
%00°00L %0L°L8 %0S VL %09°L9 %0%°8S %09°0S %06°8€ %0€°0€ %0S°LT %08°€L %0L"9 %0L°L
%0°0 %0°0 %0°0 %0°0 %0°0 %0°0 %0°0 %0°0 %0°0 %L YL %8 %S°C
- - - - - - - - - 609'950°C 99166 €€9°LTS
TLLLLILY 095'0£9'sS §95'899°CS 18+'060°LS 96£'€688Y 6v0'2TT Ly L6V'068'VP 6087L8'TY 0Z1'96£8€ TLO'TEE'TT 7/6'589°C 0LZ'649
. SSL'026'0C wo'se9'sL SLY'609°LL SPT's86'9L ¥6.'650'91 SLY'Lyb'SL LYL0T9'YL 0Z9'L18°cL 8Z5'9L6'LL TET'0879 bso‘6€8 S86'69L
8L6'LLL0T 80£'79Z'8L LSO'Y9T'LL 089'99/'9L SLE'SS6'SL LST'STY'SL €EV'LTIVL €68°LSLYL L60°LLETL beEE'ES'L £€68°208 897LZT
660'61.50T oLz'eeL'slL €€0°S6L°LL 9SS'8EE'LL LTT'8L8'9L €ze'ere9L LLETPI'SL 967'€06'vL L0S‘T9L YL 905'89t°8 ST0'6£0°L LS6°L8T
%00°00L %0£°06 2%0S°S8 %06°C8 %0£°6L %09°9L %06°CL %09°69 %0€°79 %07°9€ %0V %0L°L
%00°0 %00°0 %000 %00°0 %00°0 %000 %00°0 %00°0 %00°0 %610V %0S°S %07°L
- - - - - - - - - LV9'967'8 S6v'SELL LS6°L8T
aunf Aejn Judy Youepl Atenuge4q Atenuer laquiaaag laquianoN 190120 Jaquiaidas isndny Ainp
8T/L10T

yauolpl Aq asuadxd jeui{ 03 sasuadx3y pue anuanay
sjooyas easy uoisuipni

ST VT
9T ST
LT 9T

|euly %
A101SIH

193png %
aouejeg
sasuadx3y

ST VI
9T ST
LT 9T

|euly Jo %
AioasiH

193png %
aduejeg

anuanay



IL
IL
IV

VI

VIL

Ludington Area Schools
Board of Education
Meeting Minutes September 18, 2017

CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL
President Carlson called the regular meeting to order at 6:00 p.m, in the O] DeJonge Middle
School Library, 706 E. Tinkham Avenue, Ludington, Michigan.
Members Present: Steve Carlson, Kelly Thomsen, Mike Nagle, Stephanie Reed, Josh
Snyder, Bret Autrey, Mary Jo Pung
Members Absent: None
AGENDA MODIFICATION ~ Add Item C to Superintendent’s Report for MSTEP Report.
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION ~ None heard.
CONSENT AGENDA
A. Ratification of Bill Payment - Per Summary Dated August 21, 2017
1. General Operating Fund Total $1,260,982.86
2. Athletic Fund Total $35, 888.59
3. Lunch Fund Total $29,384.82
4. Total All Funds $1,326,256.27
B. Approval of Minutes August 21, 2017 Regular Meeting
Motion by Pung, supported by Autrey, to approve the consent agenda as written and presented.
Ayes: All. Nayes: None. Motion: Carries.
BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS

A. The Finance Committee Report for September 13, 2017, was presented by Bret Autrey.
The committee discussed the audited fund balance and the reduced enrollment.
Opening enrollment was 2165 if those numbers remain we will need to add additional
support staff at the lower levels. The exit conference for the audit will be presented at
the October meeting. Bids were reviewed for the sale of buses, ovens and DRA kits. Life
Insurance policies for administrative retirees was discussed. More information will be
gathered on this topic.

B. The Co-curricular Committee Report for September 15, 2017, was presented by Mike
Nagle. The committee discussed the legal update from Thrun Law for their retainer
clients.

C. The Personnel/Negotiation Committee Report for September 15, 2017, was presented
by Mike Nagle. The committee discussed the sinking fund projects and the resurfacing of
our tennis courts, skunk removal at Franklin School and runoff at Foster School
Elementary.

PRINCIPAL’S REPORT

A. The 0] Dejonge Middle School report was presented by Kristi Zimmerman and Mike
hart. They acknowledged Enviroclean Staff present at the meeting and highlighted
educational opportunities and instructional programming for middle school students.

SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT & COMMENTS

A. Mr. Kennedy stated that he was contacted by staff of the Office of the President for
WSCC and they would like to hold their off-site board meeting in our district on
December 18, 2017 and take our Board to dinner after this meeting. Mr. Kennedy
reported that he contacted legal counsel to be sure we were in compliance with the
Open Meetings Act on this event and it is permissible under the OMA 1626 #10 for
social gatherings as long as there is no deliberations. Mr. Kennedy ask if board members
would be able to attend. Affirmative responses were given by all.

B. Mr. Kennedy discussed the Michigan State Police Bus Inspection Report for 2016-2017
school year that was just released and published in the media. He described the process
and collaboration between the Michigan State Police and school districts to keep buses
safe for students. All district buses were repaired, re-inspected by July 19, 2017. The bus
fleet is safe. Our mechanics are top notch and do an excellent job maintaining the buses.
Safety and security is a top priority.

Board of Education Minutes Page 1 of 3




VIIL

X

XL

Ludington Area Schools

Board of Education
Meeting Minutes September 18, 2017

C. Mr. Kennedy discussed the MSTEP results and gave a presentation showing how

Ludington compares around the state and with comparison districts.
DISCUSSION ITEMS

A. Mr. Kennedy reported the annual Audit Exit Conference will be presented at the October
16, 2017 regular board meeting. This was discussed in committee meetings and no
further discussion was held.

B. Mr. Kennedy gave an update on the community concern and requests for improvements
to the grounds at Foster School. More research on synthetic surfaces will be explored
and reports will be submitted to the board for review and consideration.

C. Mr. Kennedy discussed the application process to the West Michigan Conference. He will
keep the board apprised of the status of our application.

D. Bruce Doggett gave an update on sinking fund projects including the pool, Franklin
HVAC and auditorium restrooms.

E. Mr. Kennedy gave a review of the bid tabulations for the sale of buses and food service
ovens.

F. Mr. Kennedy gave an update of opening day enrollment numbers which are increased
from projected number of 2145 and currently are at 2170. There are increased numbers
throughout the district which could result in added support staff time for extreme
behaviors and help address issues with numbers.

ACTION ITEMS

A. Motion by Autrey, supported by Nagle, to designate Shannon Miller at the WSESD Parent

Advisory Committee Representative for Ludington. Ayes: All. Nayes: None. Motion:
Carries.

Motion by Nagle, supported by Autrey, to approve the purchase of scoreboards from the
District funds which would be reimburses by donated funds through the Oriole
Foundation as presented. Ayes: All. Nayes: None. Motion: Carries.

OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS & ANNOUNCEMENTS - No other items of business were heard.

ADJOURNMENT - Motion by Autrey, supported by Thomsen, to adjourn the meeting at 7:33.

p.m. Ayes: All. Nayes: None. Motion: Carries.

Mary Jo Pung, Secretary, Board of Education

Board of Education Minutes Page 2 of 3




Ludington Area Schools
Board of Education

Meeting Minutes September 18, 2017

Approval Date

(Official minutes of the Ludington Board of Education are available for public inspection during normal
business hours at the Board of Education’s central business office, 809 E. Tinkham Avenue, Ludington,
Michigan. Phone 231-845-7303.) The Ludington Area School District is an equal opportunity employer
and provider.

Board of Education Minutes Page 3 of 3




Comparison Budget to Actual Revenue Accuracy

J Schools (Per MDE 1014 Report) Using 2015/16 Data

Budget Actual
School Revenue Revenue % Accurate
Portland Public Schools 18,509,977 18,531,651 99.88%
L.udington Area School (15/16) 20,249,942 20,222,763 99.87%
Mt. Morris Consolidated Schools 20,905,577 20,875,069 99.85%
Tri County Area Schools 18,049,546 18,023,044 99.85%
Sault Ste. Marie Area Schools 22,167,877 22,131,795 99.84%
Paw Paw Public School District 19,594,638 19,629,657 99.82%
Carroliton Public Schools 21,463,319 21,423,669 99.82%
Bangor Township Schools 22,311,580 22,270,358 99.82%
Imlay City Community Schools 19,334,709 19,296,938 99.80%
Chelsea School District 25,778,079 25,723,975 99.79%
Chippewa Hills School District 25,778,079 25,723,975 99.79%
Otsego Public Schools 20,536,963 20,489,493 99.77%
Croswell-Lexington Community 19,871,612 19,929,475 99.71%
Whitehall District Schools 20,745,229 20,683,177 99.70%
Ludington Area School (16/17) 20,581,788 20,519,099 99.70%
Godwin Heights (In Violation 621) 24,745,966 24,826,203 99.68%
Milan Area Schools 23,934,136 23,849,868 99.65%
Comstock Park Public Schools 20,555,349 20,628,720 99.64%
Spring Lake Public Schools 24,777,200 24,686,812 99.64%
Bullock Creek School District 18,279,110 18,210,871 99.63%
MIi Great Lakes Virtual Academy 18,161,026 18,091,372 99.62%
Belding Area School District 18,113,193 18,021,175 99.49%
Yale Public Schools 17,161,700 17,260,774 99.42%
Eaton Rapids Public Schools 23,099,649 22,963,643 99.41%
Lake Fenton Community Schools 18,506,232 18,396,775 99.41%
Alma Public Schools 20,924,233 20,798,090 99.40%
Pennfield Schools 19,405,926 19,528,124 99.37%
Goodrich Area Schools 18,421,745 18,284,346 99.25%
Escanaba Area Public Schools 22,757,328 22,566,778 99.16%
North Branch Area Schools 20,546,357 20,793,475 98.80%
South Haven Public Schools 20,295,186 20,046,660 98.78%
Kelloggsville Public Schools 22,756,468 23,062,626 98.65%
Fremont (In Violation 621) 20,325,525 20,612,814 98.59%
Oakridge Public Schools 19,299,163 18,962,015 98.25%
Westwood (In Violation 621) 23,325,021 23,772,419 98.08%
Cesar Chavez Academy 22,261,683 21,816,978 98.00%
West Branch-Rose City Area 21,702,366 21,236,474 97.85%
Dowagiac Union School District 21,695,172 21,211,391 97.77%
Benton Harbor Area Schools 26,761,159 25,976,790 97.07%
Chandler Park Academy 21,248,504 20,562,499 96.77%

Average Accuracy: 99.21%




Comparison Budget to Actual Expense Accuracy

J Schools (Per MDE 1014 Report) Using 2015/16 Audit Data

Budget
Expense

North Branch Area Schools | 20,353,073
Croswell-Lexington Community | 19,896,545
Chelsea School District | 25,847,623
Chippewa Hills School District . 25,847,623
Tri County Area Schools . 18,581,388
Whitehall District Schools | 20,738,568
Comstock Park Public Schools . 21,451,676
MI Great Lakes Virtual Academy . 18,161,026
Bangor Township Schools | 21,935,351
Ludington Area School (16/17) ' 20,703,068
Mt. Morris Consolidated Schools .| 21,007,394
Ludington Area School (15/16) | 20,248,974
Escanaba Area Public Schools | 23,741,463
Pennfield Schools | 19,373,904
Eaton Rapids Public Schools . 23,006,941
Belding Area School District ' 18,511,080
Otsego Public Schools 19,978,521
Spring Lake Public Schools | 24,769,300
Kelloggsville Public Schools | 22,126,927
Bullock Creek School District 18,418,383
Paw Paw Public School District 19,741,454
Portland Public Schools | 18,705,963
Carrollton Public Schools ' 20,899,684
Alma Public Schools 20,994,888
Yale Public Schools . 18,353,900
Milan Area Schools 24,412,545
Goodrich Area Schools | 18,374,264
Sault Ste. Marie Area Schools | 22,026,249
Lake Fenton Community Schools 18,749,039
Imlay City Community Schools ' 19,761,162
Oakridge Public Schools . 19,026,466
Cesar Chavez Academy | 20,618,887
South Haven Public Schools | 20,079,047
Dowagiac Union School District | 22,509,941
Chandler Park Academy . 20,867,283
West Branch-Rose City Area | 20,837,809
Benton Harbor Area Schools 29,300,000
Three Districts were in violation of Act 621

Fremont (In Violation 621) | 20,623,108
Westwood (In Violation 621) 22,420,548

Godwin Heights (In Violation 621) | 25,350,299

Actual
Expense

20,348,101
19,868,938
25,811,012
25,811,012
18,545,663
20,692,974
21,386,618
18,091,372
21,796,668
20,558,477
20,844,222
20,055,412
23,504,571
19,167,543
22,698,882
18,261,306
19,698,172
24,416,337
21,807,161
18,097,394
19,391,366
18,345,327
20,495,878
20,542,621
17,944,846
23,854,681
17,948,090
21,509,061
18,228,083
19,209,926
18,465,533
19,985,527
19,462,082
21,558,421
19,914,125
19,604,644
27,510,329

Average:

20,696,704
22,591,518
25,989,867

% Accurate

99.98%
99.86%
99.86%
99.86%
99.81%
99.78%
99.70%
99.62%
99.37%
99.30%
99.22%
99.04%
99.00%
98.93%
98.66%
98.65%
98.60%
98.57%
98.55%
98.26%
98.23%
98.07%
98.07%
97.85%
97.77%
97.71%
97.68%
97.65%
97.22%
97.21%
97.05%
96.93%
96.93%
95.77%
95.43%
94.08%
93.89%

98.17%

100.36%
100.76%
102.52%




Comparison of Budget to Actual Accuracy, Combined Revenues and Expenses
J Schools (Per MDE 1014 Report) Using 2015/16 Audit Information

Tri County Area Schools
Chelsea School District
Chippewa Hills School District
Croswell-Lexington Community
Whitehall District Schools
Comstock Park Public Schools
MI Great Lakes Virtual Academy
Bangor Township Schools

Mt. Morris Consolidated Schools
Ludington Area School (16/17)
Ludington Area School (15/16)
North Branch Area Schools
Otsego Public Schools
Pennfield Schools

Fremont (In Violation 621)
Spring Lake Public Schools
Escanaba Area Public Schools
Belding Area School District
Eaton Rapids Public Schools
Paw Paw Public School District
Portland Public Schools
Carrollton Public Schools
Bullock Creek School District
Sault Ste. Marie Area Schools
Milan Area Schools

Westwood (In Violation 621)
Alma Public Schools
Kelloggsville Public Schools
Yale Public Schools

Godwin Heights (In Violation 621)
Imlay City Community Schools
Goodrich Area Schools

Lake Fenton Community Schools
South Haven Public Schools
Oakridge Public Schools

Cesar Chavez Academy
Dowagiac Union School District
Chandler Park Academy

West Branch-Rose City Area
Benton Harbor Area Schools

Budget
Revenue

18,049,546
25,778,079
25,778,079
19,871,512
20,745,229

20,555,349

18,161,026
22,311,590
20,905,577
20,581,788
20,249,942
20,546,357
20,536,963
19,405,926
20,325,525
24,777,200
22,757,328
18,113,193
23,099,649
19,594,638
18,509,977
21,463,319
18,279,110
22,167,877
23,934,136
23,325,021
20,924,233
22,756,468
17,161,700
24,745,966
19,334,709
18,421,745
18,506,232
20,295,186
19,299,163
22,261,683
21,695,172
21,248,504
21,702,366
26,761,159

Actual
Revenue

18,023,044 |
25,723,975
25,723,975 |
19,929,475 |
20,683,177
20,628,790
18,091,372
22,270,358
20,875,069 |
20,519,099
20,222,763
20,793,475
20,489,493

19,528,124

20,612,814
24,686,812
22,566,778
18,021,175
22,963,643 |
19,629,657
18,531,651
21,423,669
18,210,871
22,131,795
23,849,868
23,772,419
20,798,090
23,062,626
17,260,774
24,826,203
19,296,938
18,284,346
18,396,775
20,046,660 |
18,962,015 |
21,816,978
21,211,391
20,562,499
21,236,474
25,976,790 |

Budget
Expense

18,581,388

25,847,623

. 25,847,623

19,896,545

| 20,738,568
| 21,451,676
| 18,161,026
' 21,935,351
21,007,394

20,703,068

| 20,248,974
| 20,353,073
- 19,978,521
19,373,904
- 20,623,108
| 24,769,300
| 23,741,463
18,511,080
| 23,006,941
19,741,454
- 18,705,963
| 20,899,684
| 18,418,383
| 22,026,249

24,412,545
22,420,548

| 20,994,888
| 22,126,927
18,353,900

25,350,299

- 19,761,162
| 18,374,264
18,749,039
| 20,079,047
19,026,466
20,618,887
| 22,509,941
| 20,867,283
| 20,837,809
' 29,300,000

Actual
Expense

18,545,663
25,811,012
25,811,012
19,868,938
20,692,974
21,386,618
18,091,372
21,796,668
20,844,222
20,558,477
20,055,412
20,348,101
19,698,172
19,167,543
20,696,704
24,416,337
23,504,571
18,261,306
22,698,882
19,391,366
18,345,327
20,495,878
18,097,394
21,509,061
23,854,681
22,591,518
20,542,621
21,807,161
17,944,846
25,989,867
19,209,926
17,948,090
18,228,083
19,462,082
18,465,533
19,985,527
21,558,421
19,914,125
19,604,644
27,510,329

Average All Districts:

Rev +
Exp %

99.83%
99.82%
99.82%
99.79%
99.74%
99.67%
99.62%
99.59%
99.54%
99.50%
99.45%
99.39%
99.19%
99.16%
99.13%
99.11%
99.08%
99.07%
99.04%
99.02%
98.97%
98.95%
98.94%
98.75%
98.67%
98.65%
98.62%
98.61%
98.57%
98.56%
98.49%
98.47%
98.31%
97.86%
97.66%
97.49%
96.75%
96.11%
96.01%
95.41%

98.71%



:[9A9] 9IURULIOLIIJ MIN

19N [0 =1ed

"UONBJUSWNIOP JUBL, JUIY]L [eUOnedNpy AINIUs) ISTZ ASISM PUR ‘SIsA[eue spaau
pue Apnis senoe) pajeidwoy) ‘qg) Aq peiell[ioe] S[OPOJA [BUOIIEINPY AINJUS) IST7Z U0 110day :[e0r SUnNesy JO souapIAy

SIapea] £1UN0D N0 UIYHM S[apowt
slapes] Arunuwuwo’) Arunwwon) Suruaes| uluoisiaua 10j ajqisuodsal
pue ssauisng e pue ssauisng e Y ue], qury, [euoneonpy Amjua)
asasm e asasm e 8107 - L102 ISTZ S.aSASm aya ut sredonred Ajpanoy
SOW00IN0 "ue[d o1893e03S qSV1 Y3 ul
‘Apnjs 91euIpI00d paaisap pue paulIno se ‘Apn3s sani[ioe] aalsuayarduod
03 Auedwod sueld juowadeuew e 91o[dwos 03 (paururialsp aq 03) wLly
Suruuerd juswegeuew SonI[I0e] I91SeW Surrssurdus 1o ‘Teinjdsydle ‘Auedwod
SON|[I0€] I9ISE]N @ o[dwes Jo MaladY e 8107 - £L10Z JusWoSeurW UOONIISUOD B UM Iaudied
"dSVT ulyiim spasu pue
JJEIS 10 oW} OSEI[oY e S}SIA S[epouu [euoneonpy A1njus) 3s1z Suidpnis
S1SIA 9IS 10) Joddng e 91s 103 310ddng e 10J 9[qIsuodsal 993310 ULI9IIS paseq
(ggn) udisaqg (ggn) usiseg 4q Aunwwod pue [ooyds e dojaaap 01 (qgD)
Aq suonesrunwiwio) e SUONREIIUNWWOY) e 8107 - L107Z u31sa( AQq SUOIIEDIUNWIWOY) YIIM J9UIIR]
ANAIRY
poposN 1oddng POPOIN S92.IN0SAY J0J duiawiL], AANOY YIMO.IY) [BUOSI™]

aA109)Jq A[YSIH :[9A9T @OUBULIOLId] JoS1e],

paiey A[SnoiAald I0N [9AT OUBULIOLIDJ JUS.LIN)

UONONISU] PAILIIUAII(] PUB

paseg Yoaeasay :so1sLIvoeIRy) ‘sweldold [euononnsuj Aiiqelpy pue Aieny) ysiy 110108 Juswiudiy SwaisAS - £ Uurewo(]
d1wa3sAS pue J1893e0)S (SonsLIeloeIRy) LIolaeyag dIysiapear :1030e] ‘dIysiopesr - 7 Urewo(]

JEIX [00UDS 810Z-LT0T :P313A0) pOLIad
juspusuLiadng :UONNISO]

DuawWusIy JLIqny

L107 Joqualdas :padofaaaq ajeq
Apouusy] uose( :104 ueld YIMOIY [BUOSId]

JUSWISSASSY SOIM[IOB,] I9ISB]N - Ue[J J189)BIS (] # BaIY [BON
ue[d YIMOo.Iy) [eu0S.I9d J9peaT PLISI( :uonenfeaq Jojensiurupy



-[9A97T 2IUBULIOLI9d MIN

9\ [eOH 9le(q

"J10daa Sunjewyoua( [BIOURUY PUR ‘9dUB[E] pUNnj payipne 198pnq [euy yuswpuswe jo8png :[eon SUNSI Jo aduapIay

welsAs Supjlew youaq
XddId 03 ss930y

wa3sAs
Sunjrew yousq

XAIH 03 SS2007

810¢Z- L1107

"198pnq ay3 ulyim seale
Ayuorad dopaasp pue syoLsip sjqeredwod
01 Sup{lewydouaq [eroueuy a1o[dwo)

919[dwod 03 193eueW
ssauIsng ym JIaulled

a391dwood 03
Jogeuew ssauisnq
YIm Joulied

810¢C - L10C

"9due[eq puUny 0401 € Surysiqeiss jo [eod
pleog ‘eouefeq punj 03 Suippe Jo JusIul
93 Yum Juswpuawe 193png [euyy dopasg

939[dw oo 03 198euew
ssaulsng Ym Joulled

a39[dwod 03
JodeurW SsauIsnq
UM Jaudied

810C-210¢

"10LI3ISI(] 943 Jo uonisod [epueuly ajep 01
dn 3sow ay3 309[Ja1 03 A1enigay 10 Arenue|
ur 393pnq Sunetado fenuue S 30L13SIJ dY3
Isn{pe pue .I0jIUO]N :JusWpUaWYy 303png

poapooN yoddng

POPIIN S90.IN0SAY

Ananoy
J0J QUITaWIL],

ANAIIOY YIMOIY) [BUOSID]

9A1109)J4 AJUSIH :]9A9T 90URULIOLID] }981E],

parey A[Sno1Aa.1d 0N :[9AST 9IUBULIOLID] JUI.LIN)

$921n0§ eje( 9[dINA JO 9S[) O13BWAISAS JuswaA01dW] JOLIISI(] PUE [00YIS :S9SS9201d - F UlBWO(]

Juswafeue]y 22IN0SIY

[BLISIR]N PUR [BIS] :So1ISLIal0eIRy) ‘Ssuonelad( [00YdS JUSIDYJH ‘@ALDSJT ‘DS 110108, QuawuSI[y SWalsAS - € Urewo(]

189X [00YDS 8T0Z-LT0T ‘PAISA0) POLIA]
juopuauLIedng :uonIsoq

JuawugIfy oLIqny

£10Z equaidag :padoasa( areq

Apauuay] uose[ 1104 Ue[d YIMOIY) [BUOSIdd

doueUl pue }93png :7Z# BaIy [E0N
ue[d YIMO.IY) [eU0SIdd J9pedT IDLISI( :uonenfeaq Jojensiuaiupy




{[9A9T OUBULIOJIDJ MON 9 [BOD 9le(d

"(vdsa)
UONROSSY [duuo0siad 1oddng [euoneonpy uoiduipn’ ayl pue (yq7T) UONEIDOSSY UoneInpy uoidurpn syl yiim sjuswaaise

JJBIIU0D 1055900MS JO [eaotddy ‘sjusted pue ‘syuspnis ‘JJels wodjy sAoAIns Iap[oysyels paya(dwio) ([eor) Sunedy Jo souapiag

'SUOI1E11039U 10B.IIUOD [NJSS9I0NS 0} SPEI|
ey sseo0.d SurureSieq aal3eloqe][od e

ysnouyy yg1 oyl pue (VdSHT) uonenossy

11oddns Sururedieq 110ddns Suuredaieq [Puuos1aq 1roddng [euoryeonps uoiduipny
9AIBIOQE[[0D) e 9AIBIOQE[[0D e 8107 - L107Z oy yum sdiysuoneaa aanisod dojeas(q
BlpowW [B100S / BIpoW [B120S / gam ‘9oueuwLIo)Iad Juspuajurtadns ssalppe 1eyl
gom 03 Ss9dde FUnsoj e 03 SSo20e SUnSOd e sAoAINS I9p[OYSXEIS 3IoNpu0d 03 ‘Syusted
A3AINS 01 SS90y A9AINS 01 5S820Y @ pue ‘syusapnis ‘pels ‘(yq7) UOneIdossy
9)Jel0qe[[0) 0} W], e 9)eloqe[[0) 0} SwWl], e 8107 - L107Z uoneonpy uoiduIpn’ 9yl yum Iaujied
Ananoy
papoaN ¥oddng POPO9N S921In0S9Y J0J duIow], ANATIOY YIMOIY) [BUOS.I9]
2A110913d A[YSIH :[9A9] 90UBULIOLI9 }98ae]. pajey A[Snoiaaid 10N :[9A9] IIUBULIOLISJ JUI.LINY)

suone[ay I9pjoyayels [eulslxXy pue [eulaju] Burp[ing AHUNWWO?) 110308, (S9SSa20.4 - § UITRWO(]

UAWUSIY JLIqny
Ieaj [00S 8T0Z-LT0Z :PAISA0) POLIa] L7107 oquaideg :padojasa( aye(
juspuIuLIedng :MONRISO] Apouua) uose| :10j UB[d JIMOIY) [RUOSId]

Sururedieq 9An29[[0) PUE ‘S[RIO JJEIS ‘SASAINS I9P[OYSY LIS (4 BaIY [20K)
ue[d YIMO.IY) [eUO0S.I9 J9peaT IPLISI( :uonjenjeay J0IenSIuipy



:[9A9T 9DURULIOJI3J MAN

19N [e0D ajeq

U0EJUIWNIOP JUSWISSISSY 991 WWO]) UoIIen[eAq 3ulof ‘[020301d pue ssjdures uonen[eas I0jeJSIuIwpe
‘sfesodoad welsAs Jusnoysiem WNMOLLIND JO MILA3 ‘D[MPaYDS SUNSU 99131UILIOD wnnoLLINY) :[eor) SU93JA JO IUaPIA]

"WIISAS JUSWISSISSE G-) 9PIMIIBIS
Jo uonjenysiurwpe 10y (J4y) [esodoad 10y
991IWIWO0I U0 9AIIS 99131WWI0) U0 dAISS 1senbay 105 (DH[) senIwwio) uoreN[RA]
03 SuIsueT Ul duWI], 01 SulsueT ul Wiy, 810Z - L10Z jurof a3e3s oyl uo 93edidnied :JUSWSSISSY
SoW02IN0
*Apn3s 21euIpI00d paJ1sop pue 'SUOIIEN[BAD
03 Auedwod sue[d juswaSeuew J0jel)SIuIuIpe 10J SWalsAs sdueAQy [00YDS
Suruued juswageuew SOT}[I0®.) I9)1SeW 93 pue me[ a3 SUIMO[[0] S10jenISTUIUpE
SOIII[IDe] I9ISBIN e o[dwes Jo ma1ady e 8107 - L107Z J10J $$9001d UOnEN[BAY (UOIINIISU]
'ssaooad
S90INO0Sal [BlDUBUL] e $92INn0Sal [eDUBUL] e [IoUNO02 WNNILLIND Jo uonejuawadul
uonejuswaduwy uerd Juswadwil PeNUNUOD PUB MIIADI SWAISAS
puUE M31ASI 03 SWIL], e pUE MJ1ASI 0] SWI], e 8107 - L107Z dursnoysrem wNNILLINY (WNNOLLINY
Ananoy
papaaN rroddng papoaN S92In0SaYy J0J dUI[PWIL], AJATIOY YIMO.IY) [BUOSId]

9ANV3JH A[YSIH :[0A9'] 90UBULIOLId{ 198.1e],

parey A[Snoisaad 10N :[9AT IIUBULIOLIS] JUI.LINY

S1030e,] Juswdo[aas uewny Burpying Aoede) - G urewo(]
UO0IONIISU] PojelIuUaIaljI(] pue

peseq Ydo1essay :sonsLsdeIey) ‘SWweldold [euononnsu] Aifiqersy pue Aifend) ySiy 110308 QuswuSI[y SWaisAS - £ Urewo(
JIwId)sAS pue d18931e13S SONSLIsdRIRYY) LI0lARyag dIysiapes 110308y ‘dIysiepesr - 7 Urewo(

1e9j [00Y2S 8T0Z-LT0Z PAIIAO) POLIdG
juspusluLIadng :uonIsod

DuawugIy OLIqIY

L10Z Ioquandeg :padofasa( areq
Apauusy uose( :10q ueld YIMOIY [RUOSISJ

JUSWIAASIYOY JUSPNIS - JUSWISSISSY PUE ‘UONINIISU] ‘WIN[NILLINY i # BAIY [ROK)
Uue[d YIMO.15) [EUOS.I9d JOPedT IDLIISI(] :Uonen[eay J0]ensiuiupy



:[9AST 9OUBULIOLIDJ MIN

9N [e0H 9%e(qg

‘syuawmOop

dnoun y10p\ 707 Juslel, ‘ueld wuswdopas( ‘Ainseal], 03 uonedddy asiwold £1unoy) uosey ;[eon Suneap Jo 2IuapIag

Suneaw 3soy 03 aoedg
JIS1A 9118 10j 310ddng

Funeow

1soy 01 90eds e
SIA

911s 103 310ddng e

810¢C - L10¢

epuade Sy yam usdife 03 aUop sey Syl
1eUM 9]RIISUOWSP 0} PUE SSaUIpeal 939[[0D
pUB I921Bd SSNISIP 03 ‘UOISIYM UBLIg
‘uononIIsu] Jo Juapusiuriadng 93e3s 3SOH

ydaouod
93 J0j 110ddng

SIayoea) aImnsqns
J10J poau 9[qIssod e
91eI10gE[[0) 0} W], e

810¢C - L10¢

dnoun juswdo[eas( 901010\ SZ0Z
Jua[e], Auno) uosejy ayj uo ajedonaed
sdiysaeulted ssauisnq pue [ooyods do[esap
01 AJIUNWWod SSaUISN] 9y} YIIM I8ulled

110ddns Suisielpuny
1daouod
a3 10y 310ddng

SIayoea) oInynisqns
J10J poau 9[qIssod e
9jeIOCE[[0) 0} dWIL], e

810¢Z - L10Z

A1UNno0?) UoSey ul syusapnis 03 diysaejoyos
SOpIA0IJ ‘aSIW0d A1UNO7) UOSEBJN

93 Jo Juswdo[aaap ay3 10§ ssad0.d oy
pes| pue 91e3[Ioe,] :aSTwold AJUnoy) Uosejy

popaaN 11oddng

PApaoN S92In0say

ANanDy
J0J aur[auur],

ANANDY YIMO.IY) [BUOS.ID]

9A1109)J5 A[YSIH :[9A9T 90UBULIOJLIS] }98ae],

porey A[SN01A31d 0N :[@AT 9IUBULIOLIDJ JUS.LIN)

uondNJIisuUf peieniualalji(J pue

poseq youeasay :SolsLIgldeIey) ‘Swelsold [euononsuy Aliqerey pue £Aien)) ySiy :1030e] JuawuSI[y SWaisAS - £ urewo(]
o1wR)sAS pue d18elen)§ isonsLaloeIey) doiaeyag diystopea :1030e, ‘diysiapesT - 7 urewo(

1e3} [00Y2S 8T0Z-LT0T ‘PAIIA0) POLId
juspusiuLIadng :uonIsog

Juowudi[y JLIqNy

12102 1oquaidag :padojasa(q areq

Apauusy] uose[ :104 ue[d YIMo.I5) [BUOSII]

SsauIpeay 939[[0) PUE JJ3IR)) (G# ATy [RON
ue[d YIMOo.I9 [eu0S.I9d J9peaT IIL1SI( :uonjenjeAy JoIen)SIurupy



Principals’ Board Reports
October 16, 2017

Ludington High School

We are very thankful for the outreach from the community on the loss of one of our students.
During this time our Crisis Response Team assembled quickly to develop and work through our
response. This team consisted of counselors and social workers from LASD, WSESD, and CMH. Extra
counseling supports were in place and our staff helped direct students to seek additional supports.

We have Coffee with the Principal October 17, 7:00am at the House of Flavors. The theme is getting
our students college and career ready and what parents need to know. We will provide additional
information about college prep sessions being offered by the LHS counseling department.

Homecoming Recap- Homecoming started off with an amazing evening of Powder Puff Football on
Monday. Fans came out and enjoyed themselves and our pep band kept everyone entertained.
There were several competitive games and in the end the seniors won an overtime contest.

Throughout the week we had theme days that allowed for students to dress up and show their
school spirit. Lunch games were created by student council and it enabled many student an
opportunity to participate in lunch games.

Friday the school had its March to the Field assembly. With a police escort and our band leading the
way, we took 658 students to Oriole Field for our Homecoming assembly. We are proud to say that
we did not have a single issue down and back. Lakeview little O’s were able to enjoy the assembly
with us that day.

Saturday, at the recommendation of the crisis response team, we went ahead with the Homecoming
Dance. Extra counselors were on hand all night and nearly 400 students attended.

Steve and I are excited to host the board meeting next week. We look forward to sharing some of
the exciting initiatives we have in place this year at LHS.

We've had a very successful start to the school year. Our enrollment is slightly up in the high school.
We are very pleased with the enthusiasm and dedication of our staff, They are working extremely
hard to make sure all students are successful in their classes. We've had many positive comments
from parents about the atmosphere in the high school.

LHS college and career readiness scores continue to improve over the last two year.. LHS is

committed to reaching every student to ensure they are ready to be successful when they leave our
school system. We have several new programs that we will share at our October board meeting at

the high school.

Respectfully Submitted by Dan Mesyar, LHS Principal

Page 1 of 6




Principals’ Board Reports
October 16, 2017

0. ]. DeJonge Middle School

NWEA Fall Assessment: we just finished our fall administration of the NWEA Measures of
Academic Progress tests in reading and math for all students. We will be digging into the NWEA
data, as well as M-STEP and PSAT data later this month to help us plan instructional approaches.
We will use a data dialogue process to help teachers analyze the sources of data and draw
conclusions that will help inform instructional decisions moving forward.

8th Grade Camp; we had another successful camp experience at Grace Youth Adventures. School
staff, parents and community members helped facilitate the week for our students as they
participated in waterfront activities, ziplining, science experiments, arts and crafts, horseback
riding and a host of other activities while in groups. Thank you to the camp staff as well as the
teachers who stayed back at school to cover classes. Next year we will mark a half century of
providing this outdoor education experience for Ludington 8" graders.

Professional Learning: we are providing professional development regarding three building-wide
teaching goals—student talk, questioning and collaboration routines. Currently we are focusing on
methods to teach students how to have academic conversations in every subject area. The ultimate
goal is to teach students the nature of each discipline and have them independently and skillfully
have deep conversations with little to no teacher prompting. We are usinga workshop model that
involves teacher collaboration and support at bi-weekly faculty meetings.

Parent-Teacher Conferences: we look forward to meeting with families for our first conferences
of the year, on October 19. As in the past, we will offer afternoon and evening sessions of two hours
each. We encourage students to attend to be part of the conversation about their learning and
performance.

Robotics Team: we are in the sign-up process for establishing a middle school First Robotics
Team. Karen Shineldecker, science teacher and robotics coach, has been actively seeking grants to
support the formation and maintenance of a team and was recently awarded a $25,000 grant from
the Oriole Foundation! Karen will also be coaching the first LHS FRC team this year.

Classroom Award for Keith Kuczynski: Megan Hilyard, 8" grader and first chair flutist, presented
Mr. K with a $500.00 classroom award from Preferred Credit Union. Megan’s name was drawn in a
contest that allowed her to select any teacher in her K-8 experience to award, and she chose her
instrumental music instructor. In presenting the award, Megan shared that she had misgivings
when she decided to try band, not being sure if she would really like it but knowing she could drop
it if need be. She said that Mr. K changed her whole way of thinking and she realizes the importance
of music and now is first chair. She indicated she may pursue music even at the college level. Mr. K
was provided the check for $500.00, which will enable him to purchase materials for his own
classroom use.

~ Respectfully Submitted by Kristi Zimmerman, OJMS Principal

Page 2 of 6



Principals’ Board Reports
October 16, 2017

Foster Elementary School

Community Partnership: This month Trinity Evangelical Free church begins their mentoring
program, Kids Hope. The Kids Hope program is one our tier three behavioral supports for students
that has been successful for many years at Foster Elementary School. Another area church,
Emmanuel Lutheran Church, is interested in helping Foster Elementary financially as well. Brad
Chapman and the Rotary Club handed out dictionaries to all Foster Elementary third grade students
on Friday, October 13th. We are very thankful at Foster Elementary to have such an outpouring of
support from the community.

' Positive Behavior Intervention Supports: The O-Buck store is being developed as I type, to get
ready for action next month. Students will be able to earn O-Bucks as a reward for positive behavior
and purchase items at the O-Buck store. This is a PBIS committee initiative that third grade started
a few years ago, and we are now going to go use the idea school wide. Prizes include school
supplies, books, extra recess with Mr. Gillett, dodgeball with Mr. Dotson, small toys and more.

Assessment & Instruction: NWEA testing window is closed and our results show higher starting
points then previous years. We sent out the information to our families via our school newsletter
and are excited to continue to make growth with an even higher starting point. The data was used
to create IRIPs for 3rd grade students that are below 70 percentile for reading, develop reading
groups for Title I reading, develop math groups for Title I after school math support, set
instructional levels, and assist in the development of individualized goals. NWEA is a nationally
normed assessment that allows us to compare levels with students across the nation. The data is
also very helpful when students are being considered for special education services.

NWEA Results

210.3
T RTINS 1
- 203.3
200.5 202 1558.7
200 TUigEs1ge AT 1
fa s

190 - 187G e 187
185 S A :
180 . I — U |
170 - -

Ird Grade Matk  MthGradeMath  SthGredeMath  3rd GradeResding 4th Grade Reading 5th Grade Readirg

4 Fall 2016 WFall 2017

~Respectfully Submitted by Brian Dotson, Foster Principal

Page 3 of 6



Principals’ Board Reports
October 16, 2017

Franklin Elementary School
Fire Safety Week: Franklin students visited the Ludington Fire Station for a field trip. The

Ludington Firefighters hosted the Franklin students teaching them about the importance of fire
safety. The students were welcomed by the firefighters, given a tour of the fire department, an
opportunity to sit in a fire truck, a smokehouse interaction, and shown a-demonstration of the gear
firefighters have to wear. The students enjoyed themselves
and this trip was a great way for students to connect with

community rescue workers!

el o . g’ RS L1
Franklin Fun Walk: Franklin students participated in the
Franklin Fun Walk to raise money for school activities. The fun walk was organized and managed
by Franklin PTC members and it was a fabulous, fun whole-school event. Students participated in
the monitored walking event where they walked laps on the playground for 30 minutes. After each
lap walked students received rubberbands. At the end of the 30 minutes, students were able to
determine the number of laps they walked by counting their rubberbands. After the walk, students
collect donations from friends, relatives, and neighbors based on their pledges and their personal
performance in the walk. Supporters can donate per lap or simply make a flat donation to the PTC.

4 _

NWEA: This fall students participated NWEA assessments. This assessment measures what
students know and informs teachers what students are ready to learn next. By adjusting to each
student’s performance, it creates a personalized assessment experience that accurately measures
performance- whether a student performs on, above, or below grade level. Students will set goals
based on their individual assessment results. The results of the assessments for Franklin are:

Reading Math

FR Mean RIT Norm Grade Level Mean Rit FR Mean RIT Norm Grade Level Mean Rit
Kindergarten: 1415 140.3 138.7 139.3
1st Grade: 165.3 161.6 162 159.9
2nd Grade: 175.7 174 178.2 176.2

~Respectfully Submitted by Jan Jackoviak, Franklin Principal

Page 4 of 6



Principals’ Board Reports
October 16, 2017

Lakeview Elementary

Our first month back has been a busy one but exciting things are happening at Lakeview! Our
enrollment is steady and we’ve even welcomed a few new kiddos to our school, our newest

teacher, Zack Korienek is off to a great start, staff have welcomed our families back with open
arms, student routines have been established and learning is happening! We love this time of

year!

PBIS and SWIS Data: At Lakeview Elementary we regularly review our behavior data closely to
monitor our interventions and determine whether or not they are successful. We strive every day
to meet the needs of all students and our in depth behavior analysis really helps us understand
the needs our students have. The triangles below represent an overview of our yearly data. In
an ideal setting, 80% or more of our students would respond to Tier 1 interventions. These are
interventions that all staff uses for all kids. 15% or less of kids would need an additional Tier 2
support that may include Responsibility Center, reteaching of an expected behavior, etc... and
less than 5% of our students would need Tier 3 individualized supports. As you can see from -
the triangles, our data is showing signs of improvement however, we have not yet accomplished
what we would consider to be ideal. Our PBIS program helps us continue to improve and move
toward the success we hope to see! Our Little O’s keep working hard to Be Safe, Respectful '

and Responsible!

16.20%
Ideal 2015-2016 2016-2017

NWEA Data: Lakeview students recently completed the Northwest Evaluation Association
(NWEA) Assessment. This is an assessment that is taken on the iPads and it is used to
measure student growth in Math and Reading. Students complete this assessment three times
per school year. NWEA is a computer adaptive assessment which means that if your child
answers a question correctly, the test follows up with a more challenging question. If your child
answers incorrectly, the test follows up with an easier question. This gives us a very accurate
picture of your child’s strengths and opportunities for growth. Students at Lakeview also
participate in goal setting based on the NWEA scores. This helps students be a larger part of
their learning and gives them some ownership in the process. As educators we value this
assessment information but also recognize that it is just one piece of information and we take
that into consideration whenever we are working together to make decisions for your child’s

Page 5of 6



Principals’ Board Reports
October 16, 2017

educational experience. If you have any questions about this assessment please don't hesitate
to contact your child’s teacher. The table below shows our grade level average scores for fall.

2017 Fall NWEA Scores

|  Meanrm ' "»Norméd‘Gra‘déLeVelVRIT‘** j
K 137.5 139.3
1 165 161.6
2 175 176.2

*A RIT score is an estimation of a student's instructional level and also measures student progress or

growth in school.
** A Normed score is an average score as compared to other students across the country.

~Respectfully Submitted by Amber Kowatch, Lakeview Principal

Page 6 of 6




Principals Month - October 2017

WHEREAS, energetic and inspiring school leadership is essential if Ludington’s schools are
to continue to prepare students for success, both during their K-12 program of study and
throughout life after graduation; and,

WHEREAS, principals serve as educational visionaries, instructional leaders, assessment
experts, disciplinarians, community builders, facility managers, special programs
administrators, and guardians of various legal, contractual, and policy mandates and
initiatives. They are also entrusted with the educational development of young people; and,

WHEREAS, principals set the academic tone for their schools and work collaboratively with
teachers and parents to develop and implement a clear mission, high curriculum standards
and performance goals; and,

WHEREAS, principals play a vital role in the success of students by creating school
environments that facilitate great teaching and learning and continuous improvement; and,

WHEREAS, much of the success of grade K-12 students can be attributed to principals who
act as the liaison between the school and the community it serves, ensuring that parents
and the greater school community are aware of student and school achievements; and,

WHEREAS, the celebration of Principals Month would honor elementary, middle level, and
high school principals and assistant principals, and recognize the importance of school
leadership in ensuring that every child has access to a high-quality education; and,

WHEREAS, during this month, we join with educators, parents and students throughout
our school community to raise awareness of the importance of educational leadership. We
also recognize and thank the hard-working principals in our schools who set exemplary
examples of service;

NOW THEREFORE, we, the Board of Education at Ludington Area Schools, do hereby
proclaim October 2017 as Principals Month at Ludington Area Schools, and we publicly
thank our principals for their leadership and commitment to students and their learning.

Steve Carlson - President
Kelly A. Thomsen - Vice President
Mary Jo Pung - Secretary
Bret G. Autrey - Treasurer
Michael W. Nagle - Trustee
Stephanie Reed - Trustee
Joshua Snyder - Trustee




